THE COSTA MESA FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE

OCTOBER 9, 2024
6:00 P.M. — OFFICIAL MINUTES

CALL TO ORDER by Chair Roberts at 6:01 P.M.

ROLL CALL

= Present [1] = Absent

Committee Member Liaisons and City Staff

[1 Daniel Baume Councilmember Arlis Reynolds

1 Andy Campbell 1 Councilmember Manuel Chavez

X Edwin “Bo” Glover Hank Castignetti, Orange County Model Engineers (OCME)

X Emily McClain Kelly Brown, Parks & Community Services (PACS) Commission
X Jennifer Thomas* Kelly Dalton, Fairview Park Administrator

X Kohl Crecelius, Vice Chair Seung Yang, City Engineer

X Erik Roberts, Chair Brian Gruner, Parks and Community Services Director

*Committee Member Thomas arrived at 6:03pm

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Bill Terpet: OC Vector Control and a local resident near the park, informed the committee
that the district conducts ongoing mosquito trapping at Fairview Park. He emphasized that
the wetlands are regularly treated for mosquito larvae and noted that the vernal pools receive
seasonal treatment using EPA-approved methods that are safe for both plants and wildlife.

Sergio Tellez: Coastal Corridor Alliance (CCA) representative. Mentioned upcoming
activities, such as, training workshops. Discovery tours, and restoration cleanup events.

Kim Hendricks: Fairview Park Alliance representative spoke about fly field concerns.

Jay Humphrey: Highlighted accessibility concerns at city facilities, particularly poor audio
accommodations in the community room, which hinder participation for those with hearing
difficulties. Urged improvements to the room’s setup and equipment.

Jim Erickson: Spoke about east side bike ride observations and activities that can be found
at the park.

COMMITTEE MEMBER and LIAISON COMMENTS
Vice Chair Crecelius: Stated he is happy to be here.

Committee Member Glover: Stated it was a pleasure to host Mr. Dalton and other city staff
at the Environmental Nature Center (ENC) for a tour and hopes it was inspirational. Stated
the ENC is there to be an asset to the park in any way they can.

Councilmember Reynolds: Thanked Mr. Humphrey for his comments on accessibility and
will follow up with staff on options.

PACS Commissioner Brown: Highlighted local West Nile virus concerns and shared that
UCI received part of a $160 million grant for climate-related initiatives. Mentioned a climate

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE- OCTOBER 9, 2024 — PAGE 1



action festival at Harbor Christian Church in Newport, suggesting potential collaborations
involving Fairview Park.

Hank Castignetti, OCME Liaison: Thanked the city for annual fire-abatement mowing on
the park's east side. Reported OCME provided over 3,600 free rides last month and
announced free rides on November 19-20.

Chair Roberts: Stated that the committee process is improving due to agenda prep meetings
with staff.

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. APPROVAL OF August 21, 2024 MEETING MINUTES
MOTION: To approve the August 21, 2024 minutes
MOVE/SECOND: Committee Member Glover/Committee Member McClain
Ayes: Vice Chair Crecelius, Committee Member Glover, Committee Member Thomas,
Chair Roberts, Committee Member McClain
Nays: None
Abstains: N/A
Absent: Committee Member Campbell, Committee Member Baume
Motion Carried: 5-0

2. OLD BUSINESS
A. FAIRVIEW PARK MASTER PLAN UPDATE RECOMMENDATIONS
Fairview Park Administrator, Mr. Dalton, presented.

Chair Roberts: Read out loud the concluding sentence stating that details for these
recommendations such as materials, dimensions, etc are not determined by these
recommendations. These are general recommendations to guide future action.

Public Comment:

Matt Garcia, HSS member: Advocated for Fairview Park to remain a multiuse park, as
outlined in Measure AA, which includes glider flying. Questioned claims that the
USFWS recommends closing the fly field and highlighted HSS’s long-term
collaboration with the city to mitigate wildlife impacts.

Member of the Public: Supported renaming the park, suggesting “Preserve” instead
of “Park.”

Henry Smith, HSS member: Noted HSS is currently allowed to fly twice a month.
Claimed most park visitors enjoy seeing the gliders and requested specific evidence
of environmental harm caused by flying activities.

Kim Hendricks: Emphasized Measure AA's intent to protect vernal pool habitats and
urged relocating the launch site per the Master Plan and USFWS recommendations.
Criticized vector control drones for disturbing birds and noted public concerns about
safety near the fly field.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE- OCTOBER 9, 2024 — PAGE 2



Michelle Roco: Stressed the park's role as a preserve, criticizing activities that harm
wildlife and habitat. Suggested outdated practices, like glider flying, should be
reconsidered in light of modern conservation knowledge.

APPROVAL OF FIRST RECOMMENDATION

MOTION: To approve the first Master Plan recommendation: Provide for the
incorporation of a central interpretive area

MOVE/SECOND: Vice Chair Crecelius/Committee Member Glover

Ayes: Vice Chair Crecelius, Committee Member Glover, Committee Member Thomas,
Chair Roberts, Committee Member McClain

Nays: None

Abstains: N/A

Absent: Committee Member Campbell, Committee Member Baume

Motion Carried: 5-0

Discussion on second recommendation:

Vice Chair Crecelius asked what additional steps happen after the recommendations
are adopted until they are written into the master plan. Asked about City council’s role
in the next stages of the project and master plan update process.

APPROVAL OF SECOND RECOMMENDATION

MOTION: To approve the second Master Plan recommendation: Incorporate viewing
platforms and scenic viewpoint features to enhance environmental interpretive
opportunities while preserving sensitive features

MOVE/SECOND: Committee Member Glover/Committee Member Thomas

Ayes: Vice Chair Crecelius, Committee Member Glover, Committee Member Thomas,
Chair Roberts, Committee Member McClain

Nays: None

Abstains: N/A

Absent: Committee Member Campbell, Committee Member Baume

Motion Carried: 5-0

Discussion on third recommendation:
Committee Member McClain suggested collaboration with ENC and CCA for their
expertise in youth engagement.

Chair Roberts questioned the central placement of the play area, advocating for easier
access at park entrances.

Vice Chair Crecelius emphasized keeping play areas away from natural habitats,
suggesting placement in the lawn area instead.

Chair Roberts proposed small play areas at park entrances but agreed to keep
locations flexible.

Mr. Dalton recommended using the term "nature play elements" to allow features to
be distributed while preserving natural areas.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE- OCTOBER 9, 2024 — PAGE 3



Councilmember Reynolds noted there have been previous discussions about
interpretive materials that are more interactive such as panels that allow the user to
press a button and hear a burrowing owl. Asked if those interactive materials could
address a need for interactive education near the south side of the park.

The committee aligned on incorporating "nature play elements within the existing lawn
area," with flexibility for either one area or distributed elements.

APPROVAL OF THIRD RECOMMENDATION

MOTION: To approve the third Master Plan recommendation as amended:
Incorporate nature play elements throughout the park and a nature play area within
the existing lawn area.

MOVE/SECOND: Vice Chair Crecelius/Committee Member McClain

Ayes: Vice Chair Crecelius, Committee Member Glover, Committee Member Thomas,
Chair Roberts, Committee Member McClain

Nays: None

Abstains: N/A

Absent: Committee Member Campbell, Committee Member Baume

Motion Carried: 5-0

Discussion on fourth recommendation:
Committee members inquired for map clarification and plant procurement processes.

Committee Member Glover mentioned that Tree of Life Nursery is closing and that will
leave a big hole in southern California plant sources. Stated this makes it more
important to have the propagation area that is in the recommendations.

APPROVAL OF FOURTH RECOMMENDATION

MOTION: To approve the fourth Master Plan recommendation: Incorporate a native
pollinator area to attract butterflies and other pollinators. The native pollinator area
would replace the ornamental vegetation including invasive species currently located
in the planter area.

MOVE/SECOND: Committee Member Glover/Vice Chair Crecelius

Ayes: Vice Chair Crecelius, Committee Member Glover, Committee Member Thomas,
Chair Roberts, Committee Member McClain

Nays: None

Abstains: N/A

Absent: Committee Member Campbell, Committee Member Baume

Motion Carried: 5-0

Discussion on fifth recommendation:
Committee Member McClain asked if changing the park's name to "Preserve" is open
for discussion.

Mr. Dalton explained legal restrictions and current park uses make "Preserve"
unsuitable.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE- OCTOBER 9, 2024 — PAGE 4



Chair Roberts suggested refining the name to something more nature-related,
possibly indigenous, while noting the need for broader stakeholder input.

Vice Chair Crecelius emphasized Fairview Park's uniqueness and supported a name
change that reflects its evolving role.

Committee Member McClain and PACS Commissioner Brown supported "Fairview
Nature Park" as a balanced option that respects the park's history and minimizes
public confusion. Brown stressed the logistical challenges of a larger name change.
Hank Castignetti, OCME liaison expressed strong support for "Fairview Nature Park,"
noting OCME already uses it in communications.

Councilmember Reynolds suggested adding a tagline to enhance educational and
interpretive messaging.

The committee leaned toward "Fairview Nature Park" as a minimal adjustment,
incorporating interpretive materials and broader outreach for further changes.

APPROVAL OF FIFTH RECOMMENDATION

MOTION: To approve the fifth Master Plan recommendation as amended: Modify and
refine the name of the Fairview Park site to a more nature-oriented name, such as
“Fairview Nature Park” to reflect the site’s exceptional natural resources, significant
conservation value, and lasting legacy as Costa Mesa’s premier natural open space
asset.

MOVE/SECOND: Committee Member Roberts/Vice Chair Crecelius

Ayes: Vice Chair Crecelius, Committee Member Glover, Committee Member Thomas,
Chair Roberts, Committee Member McClain

Nays: None

Abstains: N/A

Absent: Committee Member Campbell, Committee Member Baume

Motion Carried: 5-0

Please see attachment for the adjusted Committee Fairview Park Master Plan Update
recommendations.

B. MESA RESTORATION PROJECT UPDATE
Fairview Park Administrator, Mr. Dalton, presented.

Public Comment:

Jim Erickson: Stated that he couldn’t see the legend on the first slide because it was
blocked. Asked to see the legend and if those areas include the mounds where the
kids ride bikes.

Mr. Dalton: Responded that that area would be further south. Responded that the
mounds are anticipated to be removed in a future restoration project.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE- OCTOBER 9, 2024 — PAGE 5



Jim Erickson: Asked what that will that do to the existing use of the park like the bikes.

Mr. Dalton: Responded that the mounds would be removed because they were
illegally constructed, degrade wetlands, and create a safety hazard due to jumps.

Committee Member Glover: Stated that it seems the plant communities have been
identified and asked if plant palettes have been identified and if that can be shared
with the committee.

Mr. Dalton: Responded that he can share the RFP that has the full implementation
plan, including that information. Stated that will be made public when the contract is
awarded.

3. STAFF REPORTS
A. ADMINISTRATOR’S UPDATE
Fairview Park Administrator, Mr. Dalton, presented.

Committee Member Thomas mentioned the fence shown on slide 5 has already been
tampered with.

Public comments:
Ben Bovick: Highlighted the Fairview Park newsletter.

Jim Erickson: Thanked the City for the interpretive materials on the vernal pool.
Inquired why the boardwalk trail is blocked off by an A-frame.

Vice Chair Crecelius suggested that may be great content information to add for the
newsletter.

4. ADDITIONAL COMMITTEE MEMBER & STAFF COMMENTS
Parks and Community Services Director, Mr. Gruner, attended the OC Directors quarterly
meeting and met with OC Parks and discussed Fairview Park and Talbert Park
collaborations.

Mr. Dalton announced an upcoming outreach meeting for Talbert Master Plan update on
October 29" at Norma Hertzog Community Center.

Public comments:

Matt Garcia: Extended an invitation again to committee members to come out to the flying
field to observe the activity. Stated that he doesn’t believe any committee members have
observed the activity in the last 18 months since flying resumed. Listed upcoming fly days.

5. ADJOURNMENT by Chair Roberts at 7:56pm

NEXT REGULAR FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING: Wednesday,
December 11, 2024 at 6:00 P.M.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE- OCTOBER 9, 2024 — PAGE 6



ATTACHMENT 1

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the Fairview Park Steering Committee review and approve the additional
recommendations listed below. These additional recommendations are based on further
discussion with the project team, input from the community meeting(s), and items of interest
previously discussed by the Fairview Park Steering Committee.

Additional Recommendations of the Fairview Park Master Plan Update

1. Provide for the incorporation of a central interpretive area.

2. Incorporate viewing platforms and scenic viewpoint features to enhance environmental
interpretative opportunities while preserving sensitive features.

3. Incorporate a nature play elements throughout the park and a nature play area nearthe-central
interpretive_ withing the existing lawn area.

4. Incorporate a native pollinator area to attract butterflies and other pollinators. The native
pollinator area would replace the ornamental vegetation including invasive species currently
located in the planter area.

5. Modify and refine the name of the Fairview Park site to a more nature-oriented name, such as
“Fairview Nature Park” to reflect the site’'s exceptional natural resources, significant
conservation value, and lasting legacy as Costa Mesa’s premier natural open space asset.

OFFICIAL MINUTES - FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE - OCTOBER 9, 2024



	THE COSTA MESA FAIRVIEW PARK STEERING COMMITTEE

